Todd Harms
Fire Chief

Jennifer Sheetz

Board President
Division 5

Matt Kelly

Board Vice President

Division 7

Cinthia Saylors

Board Secretary
Division 1

Grant Goold
Board Member
Division 2

Randy Orzalli
Board Member
Division 3

Ted Wood
Board Member
Division 4

D’Eiman Clark
Board Member
Division 6

Gay Jones
Board Member
Division 8

Walt White
Board Member
Division 9

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 - Mather, California 95655 - Phone (916) 859-4300 * Fax (916) 859-3700

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETING

Thursday, June 25, 2020 - 6:00 PM

Held Remotely Via Zoom
Phone: (669) 900-6833
Webinar ID: 965 5594 6441 #
Password: 834753 #

The mission of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District is to provide professional
and compassionate protection, education and service to our community.

The Governor has declared a State of Emergency to exist in California as a result
of the threat of COVID-19 (aka the “Coronavirus’). The Governor issued
Executive Order N-25-20 and N-29-20, which directs Californians to follow public
health directives including canceling large gatherings. The Executive Order also
allows local legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls while still
satisfying state transparency requirements.

The Governor has also issued Executive Order N-33-20, prohibiting people from
leaving their homes or places of residence except to access necessary supplies
and services or to engage in specified critical infrastructure employment.

The Public’s health and well-being are the top priority for the Board of Directors of
the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and you are urged to take all
appropriate health safety precautions. To facilitate this process, the meeting of the
Board will be available via Zoom at the phone number listed above. If you prefer

viewing the meeting via the Zoom Application, please contact Board Clerk
Penilla via email at the address listed below.

Note: The meeting is being held solely by remote means and will be made
accessible to members of the public seeking to attend and address the Board
solely through the phone number set forth above, except that members of the
public seeking to attend and to address the Board who require reasonable
accommodations to access the meeting, based on disability or other reasons,
should contact the following person at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of a
Regular meeting to make arrangements for such reasonable accommodations:

Melissa Penilla

Board Clerk
(916) 859-4305
Penilla.melissa@metrofire.ca.gov

The Board will convene in open session at 6:00 p.m.

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties

P1



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 * Mather, California 85655 * Phone (91 6) 858-4300 - Fax (916) 859-3700

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA THURSDAY, JUNE 25, 2020

CALL TO ORDER

METRO CABLE ANNOUNCEMENT
The Open Session Meeting is videotaped for cablecast on Metro Cable 14. Replay on Sunday,

June 28" at 9:00 am and Monday, June 29" at 6:00 pm on Channel 14: Webcast at
www.sacmetrocable.ty.

PUBLIC OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST WITHIN DISTRICT
JURISDICTION INCLUDING ITEMS ON OR NOT ON AGENDA

The Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District appreciates and encourages public
interest and welcomes questions and opinions at its meetings. Public members desiring to address the
Board are requested fo first be recognized by the presiding officer and identify themselves for the record.
The presiding officer may in the interest of time and good order limit the number of public member
presentations. Speakers’ comments will be limited to three minutes (Per Section 31 of the Board of
Directors Policies and Procedures).

In accordance with Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures, members of the Public
requesting their wriften comments be read into the meeting record must be present or have a
representative present to read their comments during the time allotted.

CONSENT ITEMS

Matters of routine approval including but not limited to action summary minutes, referral of issues to
committee, committee referrals to the full Board, items thaf require yearly approval, declaration of surplus
equipment, and other consent matters. Consent Agenda is acted upon as one unit unless a Board
member requests separate discussion and/or action.

Page No.
CONSENT ITEMS

1. Action Summary Minutes [
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board
meeting of June 11, 2020.

2 Lease Agreement with California Fire & Rescue Training Authority - 10
3121 Gold Canal Drive, Rancho Cordova
Recommendation: Adopt resolution authorizing the Fire Chief to execute the
Lease Agreement.

3. Disclosure of Material Expenditure — Aviation Liability Insurance - 37
Ace Westchester Fire Insurance Company
Recommendation: Receive Presentation and authorize payment of $105,168.00
to Ace Westchester Fire Insurance Company.

ACTION ITEMS

1. Election of Representative to the CSDA Board of Directors 39
(Melissa Penilla, Board Clerk)
Recommendation: Select one candidate to be voted for as the representative
for the CSDA Board of Directors Sierra Network, Seat C.



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
10545 Amstrong Ave., Suite 200 - Mather, California 95655 - Phone (916) 8598-4300 - Fax (916) 859-3700

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA THURSDAY, JUNE 25, 2020

2. Industrial Disability Retirement — Firefighter Janice Odestig b
Recommendation: 'After discussion in Closed Session, consider adopting a
Resolution finding Firefighter Janice Odestig has suffered job related injuries
and direct staff to work with Firefighter Odestig through her Industrial Disability
Retirement process with CalPERS.

REPORTS
; PRESIDENT’S REPORT—(President Sheetz)

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT—(Chief Harms)
OPERATIONS’ REPORT - (Deputy Chief Bridge)

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT

4, COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS

All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room,
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified.

A. Executive Committee — (President Sheetz)
Next Meeting: TBD

B. Communications Center JPA — (DC Shannon)
Report Out: June 23, 2020 at 9:00 AM
Next Meeting: July 14, 2020 at 9:00 AM

C. California Fire & Rescue Training JPA — (DC Shannon)
Report Out: June 18, 2020 at 4:00 PM
Next Meeting: September 17, 2020 at 4:00 PM
Location: 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

D. Finance and Audit Committee — (Director Orzalli)
Report Out: June 25, 2020 at 5:00 PM
Next Meeting: TBD

E. Policy Committee — (Director Goold)
Next Meeting: TBD

CLOSED SESSION

1. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9 (a) — one (1) matter of
Industrial Disability Retirement.

Janice Odestig and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
Claim # SMDN — 549193~ Industrial Disability Retirement
Deputy Chief Gregory Casentini

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS

P3



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 - Mather, California 95655 - Phone (91 6) 859-4300 * Fax (916) 859-3700

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA THURSDAY, JUNE 25, 2020

ADJOURNMENT

NEXT BOARD MEETING(S):

Unless specified differently, all meetings of the Board are held at Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District,
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, CA

e Next Board Meeting — July 9, 2020 at 6:00 PM
The following action and presentation items are scheduled for the next board meeting agenda..

Board members are requested to identify additional action or presentation items they desire to
be scheduled on the agenda.

ANTICIPATED AGENDA ITEMS: TBD
Posted on June 22, 2020

Me,st«, Forillo

Melissa Penilla, Clerk of the Board

* No written report
*4[IT Separate Attachment

DISABILITY INFORMATION:

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (916) 859-4305. Notification at least 48 hours prior to
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting.

P4



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 . Mather, CA 95655 + Phone (916) 859-4300 * Fax (916) 859-3702

Togg ';Q,':;'*S ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES - REGULAR MEETING
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT
Thursday, June 11, 2020
Held Remotely Via Zoom
CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 pm by President Sheetz. Board members present:
Clark, Goold, Jones, Orzalli, Saylors, Sheetz, White, and Wood. Board members absent: Kelly.
Staff present: Chief Harms, General Counsel Lavra, and Clerk Penilla.

PUBLIC COMMENT: None

CONSENT ITEMS

Action: Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members present to
adopt the Consent Calendar as follows:

1. Action Summary Minutes
Recommendation: Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board meeting
of May 28, 2020.
Action: Approved Action Summary Minutes.

2. Professional Services Agreement - ALS Ambulance Services (RFP 19-15) -
American Medical Response (AMR)
Recommendation: Approve the attached agreement for ALS Ambulance Services and
authorize the Fire Chief to execute the agreement.
Action: Approved the agreement and authorized the Fire Chief to execute the agreement.

3. Special Services Agreement — Integrated Communications Strategies, LLC
Recommendation: Authorize the Fire Chief to approve a one-year agreement with
Integrated Communications Strategies, LLC for professional consulting services.

Action: Authorized the Fire Chief to approve the one-year agreement.

4, Special Services Agreement — General EMS Consulting with AP Triton, LLC
Recommendation: Authorize the Fire Chief to approve a one-year agreement AP
Triton, LLC for professional consulting services.
Action: Authorized the Fire Chief to approve the one-year agreement.

5. Disclosure of Material Expenditure - Insurance Brokerage Services —
USI Insurance Services
Recommendation: Authorize payment of $40,000 to US| Insurance Services for
brokerage services.
Action: Authorized payment not to exceed $40,000 to USI Insurance Services.

6. Disclosure of Material Expenditure — Fiduciary Liability Insurance -
RLI Insurance Company
Recommendation: Authorize payment of $15,957 to RLI Insurance for fiduciary liability
insurance.
Action: Authorized payment not to exceed $15,957 to RLI Insurance.

P5



Amendment to Professional Services Agreement — Security Services
Recommendation: Approve the amendment to the agreement between the District and
Lyons Security Services, Inc. and authorize the Fire Chief to execute the amendment.
Action: Approved the amendment and authorized the Fire Chief to execute the
amendment.

Amendment to Extend Current Radio System Licensing Agreement
Recommendation: Approve the amendment to extend the current Sacramento
Regional Radio Communications System agreement and authorize the Fire Chief to
approve the amendment

Action: Approved the amendment and authorized the Fire Chief to execute the
amendment.

ACTION ITEMS

%

Fiscal Year 2020/21 Preliminary Budget (CFO Thomas)
I3 Separate Attachment

Resolution — 2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the General Operating Fund 212A
Resolution ~ 2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the Capital Facilities Fund 212D
Resolution — 2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the Grants Fund 212G

Resolution — 2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the Development Impact Fees Fund
212|

E. Resolution —2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the Leased Properties Fund 212L
F. Resolution — 2020/21 Preliminary Budget for the IGT Fund 212M

G. Resolution — Adopting a Pay Schedule for Employees

cowp

Recommendation: Receive Presentation/Adopt FY 2020/21 Budget Resolutions.

Action: .

A Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-027 for the General Operating Fund 212A.

B. Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-028 for the Capital Facilities Fund 212D.

C. Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-029 for the Grants Fund 212G.

D. Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members
present o adopt Resolution No. 2020-030 for the Development Impact Fees Fund 212I.
E. Moved by Wood, seconded by Saylors, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-031 for the Leased Properties Fund 212L.

F. Moved by Wood, seconded by Saylors, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-032 for the IGT Fund 212M.

G. Moved by Wood, seconded by Saylors, and carried unanimously by members
present to adopt Resolution No. 2020-033 for the Pay Schedule for Employees.

Disclosure of Material Expenditure — Commercial Insurance —

Special District Risk Management Authority

(Brad Svennungsen, Senior Vice President, of USI Insurance Services)
Recommendation: Receive Presentation and authorize payment of $1,674,438.82
to Special District Risk Management Authority.

Action: Moved by Wood, seconded by Clark, and carried unanimously by members
present to authorize payment not to exceed $1,674,438.82 to SDRMA.

June 11, 2020 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 2 of 5

Po6



3. Disclosure of Material Expenditure — Excess Workers’ Compensation
Insurance — Safety National Casualty Corporation
(Brad Svennungsen, Senior Vice President, of USI Insurance Services)
Recommendation: Receive Presentation and authorize payment of $423,005.00
to Safety National Casualty Corporation.
Action: Moved by Wood, seconded by White, and carried unanimously by members
present to authorize payment not to exceed $423,005.00 to Safety National Casualty
Corporation.

REPORTS

1. PRESIDENT’S REPORT:

President Sheetz reported on the Executive Committee that met earlier that evening. The
Committee appointed Director White to the Policy Committee, and as an alternate to the
Sacramento County 2X2.

2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT:

Chief Harms let the Board know we have maintained a safe response to COVID-19, and
adjusted accordingly to protests and marches across the region. We are working with our
regional partners to ensure everyone is ready, this includes participation in the real time crime
center when there are ongoing protests.

There are 28 candidates preparing for the Captain’s written exam tomorrow. Once they pass the
written, they will spend five days in a Captain's Academy with Battalion Chief Keeley preparing
them for the next steps of the testing process. Best of luck to all of them!

An update from Urban Area Security Program (UASI), BC Rudnicki was recently appointed to
serve on the Purchasing Advisory Committee and was helpful in securing a large supply of PPE.

We are experiencing some slowness with the hospital counsel side of contract negotiations and
the Mobile Integrated Health (MIH) Program beyond the COVID-19 response. Our two units will
be in service through June 30,

An update in the membership antibody testing, we have screened 533 members with nine
positive results, giving a 1.69% antibody rate across the membership. We look at this
percentage, the high-risk of exposure, and consider the PPE to be working well.

He recently asked Fire Marshal Barsdale for an update on construction numbers, comparing our
current year with where we at last year during this time. When looking at code enforcement, we
are down 300 less inspections, as for plan review we saw 1,271 submissions last year and have
1,298 this year, construction inspections had 2,267 last year and 2,531 this year. As for weed
abatement, we sent out 303 letters on May 1%t and evaluated those properties seeing 61%
compliance. As for fireworks, safe and sane sales will move forward, but we are seeing a lower
number of applications for booths.

Promotion
Effective 6/1, Administrative Specialist Yuri Torres

Retirement
Effective 5/26 HR Specialist Julie Cole, 17 years of service

June 11, 2020 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 3 of 5

P7



Effective 5/29 Engineer Rebecca Cordova, 15 years of service
Effective 6/1 Captain James Novotny, 29 years of service

Effective 6/3 Engineer Mark Schreck, 28 years of service

Meetings
6/3 County of Sacramento 2x2 was a great meeting overall and thank you to Director Jones for
her participation.

Effective July 1%, Metro Fire will take over as Chair for California Metropolitan Fire Chiefs
Association. Chief Harms is excited to represent the 16 participating fire agencies in California.

OPERATIONS REPORT
Deputy Chief Bridge participated in the real time crime center during the civil unrest days. Allow
the crime center to view the city in case civil disturbances get out of hand.

An update to the Community Care Response Units 109 and 102, and Captain Perryman, the
Sacramento Public Health Department is very appreciative, as these units have been able to
test those less fortunate and those unable to get to a testing site.

Chief Bridge continued by sharing an update on response numbers. On average, the beginning
of the year had 8,400 responses per month. In April we began to see those numbers dip, with
6,700 overall, and only 5,600 EMS responses. Looking at June, and being almost half way
through the month, we are back on track as call volumes have increased. Additionally, during
the COVID-19 shelter in place timeframe, fire responses have remained steady at 12% of calls,
and increasing to 15% for this month. Lastly, he shared we are in a good position with PPE
supplies.

3. SMFD - FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT:

Joel Roberts reported out for Local 522 by first welcoming Director White. He is glad to have 15
new firefighters on the line, and carried on the tradition of past academies with a virtual
graduation. They appreciate the relationship between labor and management, especially during
these unprecedented times. The first phase of the Captain’s Test is tomorrow, he wished
everyone good luck, and he congratulated the retirees and thanked them for their years of
service. Lastly, he shared that retiree Mike Spaich recently passed away, thoughts and well
wishes are with his family.

4, COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS

All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room,
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified.

A. Executive Committee — (President Sheetz)
Next Meeting: TBD

B. Communications Center JPA — (DC Shannon)
Report Out: June 9, 2020 at 9:00 AM
Deputy Chief Shannon shared they recently adopted the preliminary budget for
FY 20/21. They lost one recruit in the dispatcher academy, and they are looking
forward to graduation on July 3.
Next Meeting: June 23, 2020 at 9:00 AM

June 11, 2020 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 4 of 5

P8



C. California Fire & Rescue Training JPA — (DC Shannon)
Recently completed the move to 3121 Gold Canal.
Next Meeting: June 18, 2020 at 4:00 PM

D. Finance and Audit Committee — (Director Orzallj)
Next Meeting: TBD

E. Policy Committee — (Director Goold)
Next Meeting: TBD

BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS
Director Goold thanked everyone for their work on the budget, he appreciates the conservative
approach due to the unknown.

Director Orzalli echoed the comments of Director Goold.

Director Wood echoed comments of his fellow Directors. He was happy to see the development
sign go up this week for new Station 68. He reminds everyone to stay safe and keep exposures
down.

Director Clark congratulated the retirees and wishes them a long and healthy retirement. He
thanked CFO Thomas, and appreciates her easy to understand explanation of the budget.

Director Jones welcomed the new recruits. She attended the Sacramento County 2X2, the
meetings are going very well and they are establishing an important line of communication. She
thanked all those involved in recent weeks for help on a fire prevention issue.

Director White thanked the Executive Committee for appointing him to the Policy Committee
and to serve as the alternate on the Sacramento County 2X2. He appreciated Captain Cahill for
conducting his COVID-19 antibody test at Station 59. He congratulated Chief Harms for his
appointment to the Chair of Cal Chiefs. Lastly, he asked for a moment of silence honoring
retiree Mike Spaich.

Director Saylors sends the best of luck to all those taking the captain’s exam tomorrow. She
thanked crews for working in her neighborhood to put out a significant grass fire. Lastly, she
congratulated Chief Harms for his appointment to Cal Chief’s chair.

Director Sheetz wished everyone taking the captain’s exam the best of luck, and congratulated
the promotees and retirees. _ '

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm with a moment of silence honoring retiree Mike Spaich.

Jenifer Sheetz, President Cinthia Saylors, Secretary

Melissa Penilla, Board Clerk

June 11, 2020 Board Meeting Action Summary Minutes Page 5 of 5



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite #200, Mather, CA 95655 - (916) 859-4300 - Fax (916) 859-3700

TODD HARMS
Fire Chief
DATE: June 25, 2020
TO: Board of Directors

SUBJECT:  Agreement for Lease of Real Property between Sacramento Metropolitan Fire
District and the California Fire & Rescue Training Authority

BACKGROUND

In 2015, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (Metro Fire) and the California Fire & Rescue
Training Authority (CFRTA) executed a lease agreement for space at Metro Fire’s headquarters
building which expired March 31, 2020. Prior to the expiration of the lease, Metro Fire and CFRTA
began negotiations to relocate CFRTA to another Metro Fire property located at 3121 Gold Canal
Drive in Rancho Cordova once the facility was vacated by the Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS
Communications Center.

DISCUSSION

If approved, the lease between Metro Fire and CFRTA will commence on July 1, 2020 with the
following terms and conditions:

Term: One (1) year, with an option to extend for one (1) additional year.
Rent: One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500) per month.
Maintenance: Lessee shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of all

improvements on the Premises.

Utilities: Lessee shall pay all utility costs, including electrical, HVAC and water
utility charges.

Taxes: Lessee shall be responsible for all real and personal property taxes.

FISCAL IMPACT

CFRTA will pay Metro Fire $18,000 in annual rent in accordance with the proposed Lease
Agreement.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the adoption of the attached resolution authorizing the Fire Chief or his
designee to execute the attached Lease Agreement.

Submitted by:
ARt N

Erin Castleberry O Jeff Frye
Administrative Specialist Chief Development Officer

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties

P10



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 » Mather, CA 95655 « Phone (916) 859-4300 * Fax (916) 859-3702

TODD HARMS
Fire Chief

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY
WITH THE CALIFORNIA FIRE & RESCUE TRAINING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, hereafter “District’, is the owner of a certain real
property located at 3121 Gold Canal Drive, in Rancho Cordova, California, hereafter "Gold Canal"; and
WHEREAS, the California Fire & Rescue Training Authority, hereafter “CFRTA”, provides training and
education for the development of the knowledge, skills and abilities needed to provide fire and rescue
services in the region; and

WHEREAS, the CFRTA desires to lease Gold Canal to provide said training and education; and

WHEREAS, District is willing to grant the same to the CFRTA, upon the promises, terms, conditions, and
covenants set forth herein. . .

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire
District, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, does hereby:

1. Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute the Agreement for Lease of Real Property
attached.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 25" day of June, 2020, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT
By:
President, Board of Directors
Attested by:

Clerk of the Board

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties P11




AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF
REAL PROPERTY

CALIFORNIA FIRE & RESCUE
TRAINING AUTHORITY

3121 GOLD CANAL DRIVE
RANCHO CORDOVA, CA 95670

P12



ARTICEE: L DEEINTTIONS ycuravoss s i oo oo s s isis s s s s 0o iss s e sesanan 2
1.1 ANNIVERSARY DIATE Lottt erie s ie ettt s e s et e e st et e st eemeane e e es e e s s emsseee s es s s e 2
1.2 COMMENCEMENT DIATE....cociiiiiiteiieieiriieieiinista e et sttt srssss st s s tssse e enenesres e st st se s esees s 2
1.3 CHIEF .. ouieienieieneereaasnneseretoersnsessntersimreressssnnsesssesssss tasssass issestsnsssansnmmeesnmesannsnnnsessesassssmnssssenssmssssssns 2
1.4 D T RIET s o rsvis sao g m s mas s e ams XA PR L A A S i i S S RS 2
1.5 EXECUTION IDATE .....cooiiiteinnisiinis ettt eecsseeeseesnee s esmtsresseesssses sesbesasestesesmemsesssnsasesnsssessss sonssesmesesas 2
1.7 LEASED PREMISES scxwsusry s is e ciies 1415008 0 5 000t s o maes ememaneenn S Y 2
1.8 LEASE YEAR wosunssnmrsmi o i e 2
1.9 D) b g L 2 I e ——_—mmnme 3
ARTICLE 2 SPECIAL CONDITIONS.....cocccsscisnssssssnsesssssssnssesse S N P 4
2.1 2 4
2.2 DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PREMISES ....vvcvviuvisisieieissinseeesssssssssesssesesesseesesemmsess et esssnseeeseessesees oo s, 4
2.3 USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES.....ccuciiirieairiieteevieesnrersestsssaessssteresssetenesssen s sesesesesassssssssoenesoeesensss 4
Ao PeFTITIEE USE.....ccooivviciiiiiiecte ettt ettt 4
B, LIMIEGEHONS «coeveeiiiie ettt e ettt et e e e e 4
2.4 L L e U S U T D 5
A Time and Manner of PAYMERL ............cocoeovevviieiiieieseesiee s iosssssisss s eses st oses e s ee s es e, o]
B B T T T R T T bt s £ty e A G S S S )
2.5 B Ry D P O T v v e T R0 T S E AT B e se 8 884 A g e s o B PR TERC 5
Ao DIEDOSTEAMOUN cvvsinsssvsyons i oo o s S0 FU 0o o4 4 es 4RS00 o sabm e s arms e pe e et st s ShotinFo e s 5
B, Condifions Of DepoSit v s s o s vt ar 0 He 555557 5o ss4a et res sesesamsesmassesees ol
R 6
2.6 ADDITIONAL FEES, CHARGES AND RENTALS ....ccicecrveivnsinssrirmssaisiissonionssisnssnssssesssassssanssssssssnssemeessens 6
2.7 INTEREST CHARGES APPLIED TO LATE PAYMENTS ....teuiieeiotretiere e ceeese s teeeeaeteeesees e ens st s s 6
2.8 UTILITIES ..t cvtettcassemneirrssssssessssssesesssoersbens sasssssssensssnssesassesssesssssscsosesssessesssenssnsnsssssnssssssssommsmesesseesssssss ]
2.9 MAINTENANCE OF LEASED PREMISES ......veeveieseeveeeresietessesessesssssssssssssssesessssesesssensssssseesosesssessssn 7
A Responsibilify Of DHSIFICL.........c.cociiiiiiieiecieieiet et sr et sts s es e st e eee s eson 7
B ReSPORSIDIlITY OF LESSEE .....c..c.coiiieeieeicieei ettt ve e et eeee e 7
2.10  IMPROVEMENTS OR ALTERATIONS ....ovevvveeeriirirsirisssinsrsssenstsssssssssssssssssssesssssesssnssessesssssesossessssemsesesesessssn, 8
201 IUSTIRRIIEE wiisonisoisiantumintesdbsss ihomsonssnansnssesomsensmssnsamt e samms ssag s es s s e s SRR 8
[0 L 1 O, 9
ARTICLE 3 GENERAL CONDITIONS T et s s sanasssensyant T VRN AR n— 10
3.1 ACCEPTANCE OF LEASED PREMISES ....cuoiuiiiiiieiaiiereiieineerseereesroseensstssanssssesessseesesssssessssesesesesesons 10
3.2 ACCORD AND SATISFACTION wissuss sivssisc i sosustsrssisnss bssiss i bilry e s surn it sssisasasastsesammmessasessssssonss 10
3.3 ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, AND SUBLETTING ...ucevietteririierasessissssssisessmsssssoseeseesssesssssssssssssssessnsses, 10
A Assigrment:antd TranSIer . coommmmmmmms s s s o TR T T S e o 10
Bl A UBLOHING . . svnssssvsrssvisssvsusmsmmy s oo e s o e o S o8 O B S e s 10
C.  Information Required By DUSIPICL.......c...covvivicuivniiiiisssiise e st es ettt 10
D. No Release of Lessee’s LIGDIIIY ..........ccccoiverieriioietcee et 11
E. District PrOCESSING FEe........c...cccocceciiimmieieiiriiriisieesiais st es e st et a s etes e eees e essens 11
34 AUTHORITY OF AGREEMENT .....ceiteitesieririeis e sienniesesnessestessesssssssesssss smessssossonseseseonessessnssssnsssnssons 12
3.5 A T O R B T B o T P i 00 e v s 8 A e e e S S 12
3.6 CHLIRORNIA LAW xcouvsasvosiiostus s ommss s oo oLV Fe e 000000 b s mm s mem e ma s o e e 12
3.7 CERTIFED AGCES S B PECYATIS T sy caras e e s oo S S et ssenrsssenesseeenrsreen 1D
3.8 CHRONIC DT INQUEN Y st st i e e S S R A s o e reep oo mensa 13
=1=

AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY

P13



3.17
3.18
3.19
3.20
3.21
3.22
3.23
3.24
3.25
3.26
3.27
3.28
3.29
3.30
3.31
3.32
333
3.34
335
3.36
3.37

3.38
3.39
3.40
3.41
3.42
3.43

COMPLIANCE WITHLAW ......ccvvuvisriaiiassiaasceesenesesmiessssses oo sesesssees e eess s ooeseeeoeseoe e 13

DISTRICT'S REMEDIES .....c.ouvuvuueressincsiniveresenessssssssnss s ssssmsesssssensesssssesses o e oes o oeoo e 13
CUMULATIVE REMEDIES w.....ccovvvviinssiunseicveomasessenssssssasssssssses s sseseseseesses s oeos oo 14
DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS ..o v vvoe st ssseeeeseooseeesss oo oo 14
I IIIONES vinscosevorssognesss 088 o s s 5 AR SRS S 14
Repair Obligations and Rights of Termin@tion........................occcoooevevcommeroomvooooo 14
Limitation on District's OBlIGAtiONS ..............c.cocoeoeevuimrirmriseeeeeseeeeeeseeeeesee oo 15
LR T T ————————— U 15
e L T ———— 15

EARLY TERMINATION BY DISTRICT
EARLY TERMINATION BY LESSEE 1.....vvvuuvieecuescerasnnssssse s sesesesesesssesesssees s oo
ENTIRE AGREEMENT .....cooiiintiteee oo N——

EXECUTION AND APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT
FORCE MAJEURE

FIOLD OOVER 1svc0oeruss cviunssousios isas 1 6955556540855 53580818 s s ewno e aws 158 S B o . 17
INDEMNIFICATION OF DTS TRICT 00547655 60555055555550851 6 oms aonswann s ssmeso skttt somsisseec e
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ...cucuvveveteeeeeeeeseeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeeoeseeseeeese

INTERPRETATION OF AGREEMENT
INVALID PROVISIONS

NOTICE OF CLAIMS AND SUIT
NUISANCE AND WASTE
PROHIBITION OF LIENS

RELEASE OF LIABILITY ....cvvee.....
REMOVAL OF LESSEE'S PROPERTY
RETENTION OF RECORDS
|5 e g o R———————————————— S ————
RISK REDUCTION ...ccouiirmecenmmmensinseniessesresesosesssesessesesese s tes s st

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS ..v...c.ovevecmesmoecsmssssnsssssssesnsssssessmessssseseosssseesessonse s,

SURRENDER OF LEASED PREMISES
AT, ovarsstn s sk S EAR N H] Sk s s mms kst B S A SR

-ii-

P14



AGREEMENT FOR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY

3121 Gold Canal Drive, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of

, 2020 by and between the SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN
FIRE DISTRICT, an autonomous Special District established under California Health and
Safety Code Section 13800, hereafter "District," and the CALIFORNIA FIRE AND RESCUE
TRAINING AUTHORITY, a Joint Powers Authority organized pursuant to the provisions of the

California Government Code Section 6500, hereafter "Lessee."

WHEREAS, District owns certain real property located at 3121 Gold Canal Drive in the
City of Rancho Cordova, California; and

WHEREAS, Lessee provides training and education for the development of the
knowledge, skills and abilities needed to provide fire and rescue services in the region; and

WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease that certain real property from District to conduct
Lessee’s business; and

WHEREAS, District is willing to grant the same to Lessee, upon the promises, terms,
conditions, and covenants set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, for consideration of the promises, terms, conditions, and

covenants contained herein, District and Lessee hereby agree as follows:

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 1 of 22

P15



Article 1
Definitions

As used herein, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings set forth
below:

1.01  Anniversary Date
"Anniversary Date" shall mean the first day of a Lease Year.
1.02 Commencement Date

"Commencement Date" shall mean the date the Agreement is effective which shall be
July 1, 2020.

1.03  Chief

"Chief" shall mean the Fire Chief of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and his or
her authorized representatives.

1.04 District

"District” shall mean Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, an autonomous Special
District, as represented by the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board of Directors.

1.05 Execution Date

"Execution Date" shall mean the date the Agreement is approved and executed by the
Chief.

1.06 Sign

"Sign" shall mean any advertising sign, billboard, identification sign or symbol, poster, or
other similar device, regardless of content.

1.07 Leased Premises

"Leased Premises” shall mean those certain premises leased by Lessee, more
particularly described by Article 2.02.

1.08 Lease Year

"Lease Year" shall mean a period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months beginning
July 1 and ending June 30.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 2 of 22

P16



1.09 Trade Fixtures

"Trade Fixtures" shall mean, but will not be limited to: all fixtures, furnishings,
equipment, and machinery used in connection with Lessee's required or permitted activities
pursuant to this Agreement, whether or not such machinery or equipment is bolted or otherwise
attached to the Leased Premises; and all other miscellaneous personal property affixed in such
a manner that they can be readily removed without damage to the remainder of the Leased
Premises and without substantially changing the character of the improvements. All non-affixed
items, including point of sale equipment, moveable furnishings, safes, racks, telephone
equipment, and non-affixed display fixtures, shall be deemed to be Trade Fixtures for the
purposes of this Agreement.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property ‘ Page 3 of 22

P17



2.01

2.02

Article 2
Special Conditions

Term
A. Initial Term

The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year, commencing on July 1, 2020
and terminating on June 30, 2021.

Whenever the word "Term" is used hereafter in this Agreement it shall mean the Term
as set forth in this Section.

B. Option to Extend

Lessee, with the consent of District, may extend this Agreement upon the expiration
of the Initial Term for one (1) additional one (1) year term. If Lessee prefers to exercise
this option, Lessee shall give written notice to District of its desire to renew the
Agreement not less than 90 days prior to expiration of the Agreement. District shall
respond to Lessee within 7 calendar days of receipt of written notice. If the District
consents to the Term extension, Lessee’s rental of the Leased Premises shall be upon
the same terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement.

Description of Leased Premises

District hereby leases to Lessee the entire premises at 3121 Gold Canal Drive, Rancho

Cordova, CA 95670 which shall include the adjacent vacant lot, hereinafter Leased Premises.

Except as provided herein, all Leased Premises are leased in their “as is” condition and

without any expressed or implied representations or warranties of any kind whatsoever.

2.03

Use of the Leased Premises

A. Permitted Use

Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 2.03(b), and elsewhere in this -

Agreement, Lessee may use the Leased Premises for any or all of the following
purposes, but for no other purposes: '

1. Lessee shall have the right to use the Leased Premises as a training
center in support of Lessee’s normal operations.

2. Lessee shall also have the right to use the Leased Premises for
meetings related to fire and rescue.

Lessee's use of Leased Premises shall at all times be in accordance with and
comply with all applicable federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances.

B. Limitations

Lessee shall use the Leased Premises in accordance with the following
limitations and all other applicable terms, promises, conditions, and covenants contained
herein. Lessee shall not engage in any commercial activity at the Leased Premises

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 4 of 22

P18



2.04

2.05

other than as provided in Section 2.03 (a), without first obtaining the required permits or
agreements from District.

Rent
Lessee shall pay Rent to District during the Term of the Agreement as follows:
A. Time and Manner of Payment |

Lessee shall pay all Rent in advance, in equal monthly installments, at the
District's accounting office, at the address shown for District under Section 2.12 herein,
on the first day of each calendar month throughout the Term of this Agreement.

B. Rent

Commencing July 1, 2020, Rent shall be paid on the first day of each and every
calendar month throughout the Term of this Agreement and without prior notice thereof.
The District shall send a bill to Lessee at least two weeks before the due date. Lessee
shall pay to District Rent in the amount of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500)
per month.

Security Deposit
A. Deposit Amount

Lessee shall deposit with the District a Security Deposit in the sum equivalent to
three month's Rent, initially Four Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100ths Dollars
($4,500.00). Such deposit shall be in the form of an irrevocable, automatically renewing,
bank letter of credit, performance bond obtained from a company that has an A.M.
Best’s rating of no less than A:Vil or other security satisfactory to the District, in a form
approved by the Chief. Upon notice from the Chief, this requirement may be removed
until such time that a Security Deposit is required from Lessee. Documents evidencing
this deposit must provide that the same shall remain in full force and effect for a period
extending two months following any termination or cancellation of this Agreement as
herein provided. At all times upon request of District, Lessee will increase the amount
on deposit with District to an amount equivalent to at least three months of monthly
rental payment due.

B. Conditions of Deposit

The sum paid by Lessee for the Security Deposit shall be held by District for
Lessee, and shall not be subject to the claim of any creditor of District. District may use
such deposit, or any portion thereof, for payment of any sum owed to District by Lessee
with respect to this Agreement, and such use may be without prior notice to Lessee. If
any portion of such deposit is used to correct such a default, Lessee shall pay to District,
upon demand therefore, such sums as are needed to return the full amount of the
deposit with District to an amount equivalent to three month’s Rent, and such payment
shall be made to District by Lessee within fifteen (15) days of such demand. District
shall not be responsible for paying any interest or additional charges or costs during the
period in which such deposit is held.

Within fifteen (15) days of applying such deposit to correct a default or to pay amounts
due or owing upon termination of this Agreement, District shall provide Lessee with an
accounting of such deposit application. Upon termination of this Agreement, such

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 5 of 22

P19



deposit less any amounts due or owing to District by Lessee shall be refunded to
Lessee.

C. Waiver of Deposit

District shall waive the Security Deposit requirement specified in Paragraph A of
this Section as long the District is a member of the Sacramento Fire & Rescue Training
Joint Powers Authority.

2.06 Additional Fees, Charges and Rentals

Lessee shall pay to District additional fees, charges and rentals in the event of any of
the following:

a) If District has paid any sum or sums, or has incurred any obligation or expense,
for which Lessee has agreed to pay or reimburse District, or for which Lessee is
otherwise responsible;

b) If District is required or elects to pay any sum or sums, or incur any obligation or
expense, because of the failure, neglect or refusal of Lessee to perform or fulfil
any of the promises, terms, conditions or covenants required of it herein; or

c) Pursuant to any separate agreement between the parties not contained herein.

Lessee's obligations pursuant to this Section shall include all interest, cost, damages,
and penalties in conjunction with such sums so paid or expenses so incurred by District, which
may be added by District to any installment of fees, charges, and rents payable herein. Each
and every part of such payment by District shall be recoverable by District in the same manner
and with like remedies as if it were expressly set forth herein.

For all purposes under this Section, and in any suit, action or proceeding of any kind
between the parties hereto, any receipt showing the payment of any sum or sums by District for
or in connection with any work done or material furnished shall be prima facie evidence against
Lessee that the amount of such payment was necessary and reasonable.

Lessee shall pay District pursuant to this Section within thirty (30) days following
demand therefor.

2.07 Interest Charges Applied To Late Payments

If Lessee is in arrears for seven (7) days or more following the due date of any amount
payable to the District herein, the parties acknowledge that additional clerical, accounting and
other work will be performed which would not otherwise be needed absent the late payment. In
addition, because the actual charges as a result of the late payment are difficult to identify, the
parties hereby agree that Lessee shall pay as a reasonable interest charge for the late payment
the amount of five percent (5%) computed as an annual percentage rate, applicable from the
date such payment was due to the date the actual payment is received by the District. If the
maximum charge permitted by law is less than the foregoing amount, then the rate shall be
such amount determined to be the maximum legal amount. These interest charges shall be
calculated and posted on a monthly basis, and shall be prorated by the number of days in the
month.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 6 of 22

P20



2.08 Utilities

Lessee, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, shall make its own arrangements and pay
for all charges assessed for any and all other utilities including, but not limited to, electricity,
gas, water, sanitary sewer, telephone and communication services, including any and all
connection and metering charges, as billed directly to Lessee by utility companies furnishing
such services or as billed by District. If billed by District, Lessee shall pay standard
nondiscriminatory rates and charges including, but not limited to, administrative charges as may
be established by District from time to time, within thirty (30) days following the date of such
billing.

Lessee agrees that any and all such charges for any and all such services shall be paid
before their delinquency and that District shall be protected and held harmless by Lessee there
from. District shall not be liable to Lessee for any interruption in or curtailment of any utility
service, nor shall any such interruption or curtailment constitute a constructive eviction or
grounds for rental abatement in whole or in part herein.

2.09 Maintenance of Leased Premises
A. Responsibility of District

Throughout the Term of this Agreement, District shall provide the following
maintenance to the Leased Premises:

1) Provide structural maintenance and/or structural repair to the Leased
Premises, including exterior walls, roof and foundation.

B. Responsibility of Lessee

Except‘ as otherwise expressly provided in Section 2.09 (A), during the Term of
this Agreement, Lessee shall at its sole cost and expense perform all other maintenance
and repair, including but not limited to:

1) Maintain, repair and perform all ordinary preventative maintenance and
upkeep of the Leased Premises. Such maintenance and repair shall include
all appliances and fixtures within Lessee's Leased Premises.

2) Repair and patch roof, as necessary. Clean and clear gutters as necessary.

3) Maintain, repair and perform preventative maintenance of heating,
ventilation, air conditioning equipment and filters.

4) Maintain, repair, and perform all ordinary preventative maintenance of
electrical (including relamping and ballast replacement) and all subsurface
plumbing systems.

5) Maintain and repair exterior doors and windows as needed.

6) Maintain, repair and replace any improvements, alterations, or additions
caused by Lessee whether Lessee has or has not obtained advance
authorization from District in accordance with Section 2.10 of this Agreement.

7) Clean and perform all janitorial service within the Leased Premises.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
~ Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 7 of 22

P21



8) Provide pest control services necessary to maintain the Leased Premises in
a pest and vermin free condition.

8) Provide landscaping services necessary for the upkeep of the Leased
Premises.

As between District and Lessee, Lessee shall be solely responsible for the cost of any
repair or maintenance to the Leased Premises resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of
Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, invitees, suppliers, or contractors. In the event of such
damage, District may elect to perform such repair or maintenance itself, at Lessee’s sole cost
and expense, or require Lessee to perform the same at Lessee’s sole cost and expense.
Provided, however, if such repair or maintenance is not of an emergency nature, as determined
by the Chief, in his sole discretion, District shall give Lessee five (6) days advance written notice
of its election in such matter.

Lessee agrees to take good care of the Leased Premises and to return the same at the
termination of this Agreement in as good order and condition as when received, excepting
ordinary wear and tear and natural decay.

2.10 Improvements or Alterations

Lessee shall make no alterations or improvements, including repairs, to Leased
Premises without the prior written approval of the Chief which shall set forth the procedures
applicable to the alteration. To obtain the Chief's written authorization, Lessee agrees to submit
written specifications of the modifications requested. The Chief's approval shall not waive any
local, State or federal requirements governing such alterations and improvements.  All
alterations, improvements or repairs made to the Leased Premises will be at the sole cost and
expense of Lessee.

2.11 Insurance

Throughout the term of this Agreement, Lessee for itself and its officers,
representatives, agents, employees, guests, patrons, contractors, subcontractors, licensees,
invitees, volunteers and suppliers shall maintain in full force and effect the forms of insurance
specified herein:

A. Lessee shall pay for and maintain insurance throughout the life of this Lease
with general liability coverage of One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000).

B. Lessee shall furnish District with proof on insurance and an endorsement
issued by an insurer approved by District showing the coverage to be in force
and showing District as-a named insured for the current Term.

C. Any insurance policies required by this Lease shall not be amended or
cancelled without thirty (30) days' prior written notice being given to District.

D. In the event Lessee does not have the required certificate(s) of insurance
and/or binder(s) evidencing the proper insurance coverage, or the required
insurance coverage lapses, this Agreement shall be terminated at District's
option by the Chief giving written notice to Lessee.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property ‘ Page 8 of 22

P22



2.12 Notices

Any notice, demand, request, consent or approval required pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by U.S. Mall, overnight courier or email.
Such matters shall be addressed to the other party at the following address:

When to District: When to Lessee:

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District CFRTA

ATTN: Property Manager 3121 Gold Canal Drive

10545 Armstrong Ave #200 Rancho Cordova, CA 95670-6111

Mather, CA 95655

or to any other address as either party may designate to the other by giving fifteen (15) days
prior written notice. All communications shall be deemed received upon delivery if personally
delivered or when delivered by recognized overnight delivery service, or within five (5) business
days following deposit in the mail, if sent by mail. If sent by email, notice shall be presumed to
have been received by the recipient upon printed confirmation by email that the following email
addresses are used:

When to District: When to Lessee:
Frye.Jeff@metrofire.ca.gov firejpa@fireandrescuetraining.ca.gov

If notice is given in any other manner or at any other place, it will also be given at the
place and in the manner specified in this Section. Either Party, by notice given under this
Section, may designate different addresses to which subsequent notices will be sent.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 9 of 22

P23



Article 3
General Conditions

3.01 Acceptance of Leased Premises

Lessee hereby accepts the Leased Premises in its "as-is" condition existing at the
commencement of the Term hereof. Taking possession of the Leased Premises by Lessee
shall be conclusive evidence that the condition thereof is satisfactory to Lessee. District makes
no representation or warranty that the Leased Premises are suitable for the uses to which
Lessee shall be restricted pursuant to this Agreement.

3.02 Accord and Satisfaction

No payment by Lessee or receipt by District of a lesser amount than the rent, fees
and/or charges due to be made by Lessee herein shall be deemed to be other than on account
of the rent, fees and/or charges due, and no endorsement or statement on any check or in any
letter accompanying any check or payment as rent, fees and/or charges shall be deemed an
accord and satisfaction, and District may accept such check or payment without prejudice to
District's right to recover the balance of such rent, fees and/or charges or to pursue any other
remedy provided in this Agreement.

3.03 Assignment, Transfer, and Subletting
A. Assignment and Transfer

Lessee shall have no right to assign, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise transfer this
Agreement, either voluntarily or by operation of law, in whole or in part, without the prior
written consent of District in each instance. Such consent shall be subject to the
standards and conditions specified in this Section, provided, however, that this
Agreement may be assigned in its entirety without such consent to any successor in
interest of Lessee with, or into which, the Lessee may merge or consolidate, or which
may succeed to the assets of the Lessee or the major portion of its assets; provided
further, that such succeeding entity or purchaser executes and delivers to District an
instrument in a form satisfactory to the District assuming the obligations of Lessee as if
it were the original Lessee herein and a transfer to such entity shall not defeat or
undermine the purposes of this Agreement.

B. Subletting

Lessee shall have no right to sublease all or any part of the Leased Premises
without the prior written consent of District. As to such a sublease, the Chief is
authorized to give or revoke such written consent as the agent of the District. Each
sublease shall be in a form satisfactory to the Chief. The Chief's consent shall be
subject to the standards and conditions specified in this Section.

C. Information Required by District

In connection with any proposed assignment or sublease, Lessee shall submit
an initial request to the Chief in writing, which shall be accompanied by the following:

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 10 of 22

P24



1) The name and legal composition of the proposed assignee or Lessee;
2) The proposed effective date of such assignment or sublease:

3) The proposed assignee’s or Lessee’s intended use and operations at the
Leased Premises, and any other information Chief may reasonably require
relating to the impact of the intended use;

4) Such information as to the proposed assignee’s or Lessee’s financial
responsibility, standing, and financing capability as is available;

5) A written consent of the proposed assignee or Lessee to all the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and said assignee’s or Lessee’s consent to the
incorporation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement into any
assignment or sublease;

6) All the terms and conditions upon which the proposed assignment or
sublease is to be made: and

7) Such other information as the Chief may reasonably require to make a
judgment regarding an assignment or sublease.

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of such written request, the Chief may give
written notice to Lessee of any additional information as may be reasonably required in
order to make a determination regarding the proposed assignment or sublease.

D. No Release of Lessee’s Liability

No assignment shall release Lessee of Lessee's obligation herein or alter the
primary liability of Lessee to pay the minimum monthly Rent and other payments
required herein, and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee herein.
District may accept Rent from any person other than Lessee pending approval or
disapproval of such assignment. Neither a delay in the approval or disapproval of such
assignment nor the acceptance of Rent shall constitute a waiver or estoppel of District's
right to exercise its remedies for the breach of any of the terms or conditions of this
Section of this Agreement. Consent to one assignment shall not be deemed a waiver of
the necessity for consent for any subsequent assignment. In the event of default by any
assignee or Lessee of Lessee, or any successor of Lessee, in the performance of any of
the terms hereof, District may proceed directly against Lessee without the necessity of
exhausting remedies against said assignee or Lessee. District may consent to
subsequent assignments of this Agreement or amendments or modifications to this
Agreement with assignees of Lessee without notifying Lessee, or any successor of
Lessee, and without its or their consent thereto and such action shall not relieve Lessee
of liability under this Agreement.

E. District Processing Fee

In the event that Lessee, or a morigagee of Lessee, requires or requests
District’s review, investigation, processing, recordation, or any other consideration of
Lessee’s proposed sublease, assignment or other transfer permitted in accordance with
this Section, estoppel certificates, documentation regarding Lessee’s financing of its
leasehold interest, or any other documentation, Lessee agrees that as a condition
precedent to the District's review, Lessee shall reimburse District for all District's
reasonable costs, including but not limited to, all of District's staff labor, which shall

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 11 of 22

P25



include any consultants and attorney fees, all postage (both first class and express mail)
and all materials used or expended in completing District’s review. Lessee shall make
said reimbursement to District within thirty (30) days after District's written request is
received by Lessee. District may terminate this Agreement should Lessee not pay the
District’s reimbursement described in this Section within thirty (30) days of receipt.

3.04 Authority of Agreement

Lessee warrants and represents that it has the right, power, and legal capacity to enter
into, and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and no approvals or consents of any
persons are necessary in connection with it. The execution, delivery, and performance of this
Agreement by the undersigned Lessee representatives have been duly authorized by all
necessary corporate action of Lessee, and this Agreement will constitute a legal, valid, and
binding obligation of Lessee, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

3.05 Authority of the Chief

The Chief shall administer this Agreement on behalf of District. Unless otherwise
provided herein or required by applicable law, the Chief shall be vested with all rights, powers,
and duties of District herein. With respect to matters herein subject to the approval,
satisfaction, or discretion of District or the Chief, the decision of the Chief in such matters shall
be final.

3.06 California Law

This Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the statutory and
decisional law of the State of California. In the event of a dispute between the parties as to the
language of this Agreement or the construction or meaning of any term hereof, this Agreement
shall be deemed to have been drafted by the parties in equal parts so that no presumption or
inferences concerning its terms or interpretation may be construed against any party to this
Agreement. Any litigation filed by Lessee or District against the other regarding the terms of this
Agreement, performance of a party's obligations under this Agreement, or any other reason related
in any way to this Agreement, shall be filed in a federal or State court of competent jurisdiction
located in Sacramento, California.

3.07 Certified Access Specialist

Statement Regarding a Certified Access Specialist — Pursuant to California Civil Code
§1938, the SUCCESSOR AGENCY states that the Premises:

X Have not undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp).

o Have undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp) and it was
determined that the Premises met all applicable construction-related accessibility standards and a
disability access inspection certificate has been issued pursuant to California Civil Code §55.51 et
seq.

. Have undergone an inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp) and it was
determined that the Premises did not meet all applicable construction-related accessibility
standards pursuant to California Civil Code §55.51 et seq.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 12 of 22

P26



A Certified Access Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and determine whether the
subject premises comply with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility standards under
state law. Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of the subject premises, the
commercial property owner or lessor may not prohibit the lessee or tenant from obtaining a CASp
inspection of the subject premises for the occupancy or potential occupancy of the lessee or
tenant, if requested by the lessee or tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the arrangements
for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspection,
and the cost of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related
accessibility standards within the premises.

3.08 Chronic Delinquency

In the event of a Chronic Delinquency (as hereinafter defined), at District's option, District
shall have the right, in addition to all other remedies under this Agreement and at law, to require
that Rent be paid by Lessee quarterly, in advance. This provision shall not limit in any way nor be
construed as a waiver of the rights and remedies of District provided herein or by law in the event
of delinquency. “Chronic Delinquency” shall mean failure by Lessee to pay Rent, or any other
payments required to be paid by Lessee under this Agreement, within three (3) days after written
notice thereof for any three (3) months (consecutive or nonconsecutive) during any twelve (12)
month period. '

3.09 Compliance with Law

Lessee shall not, in connection with any of its activities or operations, use any of the
District's facilities or permit the same to be used by any of its officers, representatives, agents,
employees, contractors, subcontractors, licensees, subtenants, invitees, or suppliers for any
llegal purpose. Lessee is responsible for obtaining all licenses, permits, and other
governmental and private permissions necessary for, or related to, all Lessee’s activities on the
Leased Premises.

Lessee shall comply with all applicable ordinances, laws, rules, and regulations of any
city, District, State, federal government or agency that has jurisdiction to pass laws or
ordinances or to make and enforce rules and regulations governing conduct on and operations
at the Leased Premises.

3.10 District's Remedies
Pursuant to Section 1951.2 of the California Civil Code:

a) In the event that Lessee breaches this Agreement and abandons the property
before the end of the Term hereof, or if Lessee's right to possession is
terminated by District because of a breach of this Agreement, this Agreement
terminates. Upon such termination, the District may recover from Lessee:

b) The unpaid Rent which was due at the time of termination:

c) The unpaid Rent which would have been earned after termination until the term
of this Agreement expired; _

d) Any other amount necessary to compensate District for all the detriment
proximately caused by Lessee's failure to perform its obligations under this
Agreement, or which in the ordinary course of things would be likely to result

therefrom.
California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 13 of 22

P27



e) Efforts by District to mitigate the damages caused by Lessee's breach of this
Agreement do not waive District's right to recover damages pursuant to said
Section 1951.2 and this Section 3.09.

f) Nothing in this Section 3.09 affects the right of District under this Agreement to
indemnification for liability arising prior to the termination of this Agreement for
personal injuries or property damage, as herein provided.

)] Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of Lessee's breach of this Agreement
and abandonment of the Leased Premises, pursuant to Section 1951.4 of the
California Civil Code, District may, at its sole option, elect to continue this
Agreement and enforce all its rights and remedies herein against Lessee,
including the right to recover the Rent as it becomes due.

3.11 Cumulative Remedies

No remedy or election herein shall be deemed exclusive but shall, wherever possible, be
cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity.

3.12 Damage or Destruction of Improvements

In the event that any or all of the improvements located in or on the Leased Premises
shall suffer partial or substantial destruction at any time during the Term of this Agreement, the
respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto with respect to reconstruction, repairing,
and/or restoring such improvements and/or with respect to the matter of the continuance or
termination of this Agreement following any such destruction, shall be controlled by the
provisions of this Section.

A. Definitions

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 1) the
term "Partial Destruction" as used herein, shall be deemed to mean a destruction of
improvements to such an extent that the then currently estimated total costs of restoring
the destroyed improvements to as good a condition of habitability and/or usability (for
those certain uses herein authorized and intended therefore) as existed immediately
prior to the occurrence of any such destruction shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of
the then current estimated total replacement costs of all of the improvements on the
Leased Premises (excluding land and personal properties); 2) the term "Substantial
Destruction” as used herein, shall be deemed to mean a destruction of improvements to
such an extent that the then current estimated total costs of restoring the destroyed
improvements to as good a condition of habitability and/or usability (for those certain
uses herein authorized and intended therefore) as existed immediately prior to the
occurrence of any such destruction shall exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the then
current estimated total replacement costs of all of the improvements on the Leased
Premises (excluding land and personal properties).

B. Repair Obligations and Rights of Termination

In the event the District-owned improvements located in or on the Leased
Premises shall suffer Partial or Substantial Destruction at any time during the Term
hereof, then:

1) District may, but shall not be obligated to, perform the reconstruction, repair,
and/or restoration of such improvements.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 14 of 22

P28



3.13

2) If the destruction is substantial, either party may cancel and terminate this
Agreement as of the date of the occurrence of such destruction by giving
written notice to the other party within sixty (60) days after such destruction.

3) If within sixty (60). days after the date of any partial destruction District has
not completed the reconstruction, repair, and/or restoration of the destroyed
improvements, then, at any time prior to the completion of such
reconstruction, repair and/or restoration by District, Lessee may cancel and
terminate this Agreement by service of a minimum of thirty (30) days
advance written notice upon District.

4) If within sixty (60) days after the date of any substantial destruction, District
has not commenced the reconstruction, repair or restoration of the destroyed
improvements or if such action has been commenced during said period but
the Leased Premises shall not have been fully reconstructed, repaired or
restored to a tenantable condition within one hundred twenty (120) days
following the date of such Substantial Destruction, then, at any time prior to
the completion of such reconstruction, repair or restoration by District,
Lessee may cancel and terminate this Agreement by service of a minimum of
thirty (30) days advance written notice upon District.

C. Limitation on District's Obligations

The foregoing provisions of this Section 3.12 notwithstanding, District shall not
be liable for or obligated to reconstruct, repair, restore, reinstall, or replace any
improvements or any furnishings, fixtures, or equipment, or other personal property,
installed, placed, located in, on or about the Leased Premises by Lessee, Lessee's
employees, agents, representatives, tenants, or Lessees.

D. The Payment of Rent

In the event any or all of the District improvements located in or on the Leased
Premises shall suffer either Partial or Substantial Destruction at any time during the
Term hereof, the Rent due to be paid by Lessee shall be paid to the date of such
destruction and shall then be abated to the extent that the Leased Premises are
untenantable, so that Lessee shall only be obligated to pay Rent on those portions of
the Leased Premises that are tenantable.

E. Destruction

Lessee waives the provisions of California Civil Code Sections 1932(2) and
1933(4) which relate to termination of leases when the thing leased is destroyed and
agrees that such event shall be governed by the provisions of this Section 3.12.

Early Termination by District

District may terminate this Agreement prior to expiration of the Term hereof upon the

happening of one or more of the following events:

a) Lessee fails to make any payment of Rent or any other required payment, as
and when due herein, where such failure continues for a period of fifteen (15)
days following service of notice thereof upon Lessee by District;

b) Lessee makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors;
California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 15 of 22

P29



c) Lessee files a voluntary petition, or becomes the subject of an involuntary

petition, in any proceedings in Bankruptcy Court;

d) Lessee vacates or abandons the Leased Premises for a period of thirty (30) days
or more;
e) Lessee fails to obtain or maintain any of the insurance coverage set forth in

Article 2.11 of this Agreement. The Chief may, in his sole discretion,
immediately terminate this Agreement;

f) Lessee defaults in performance of any promise, term, condition, or covenant
required of it herein (other than those expressly set forth in Subsections (a) and
(e) above, wherein no further default notice is required), provided Lessee fails to
cure such default within thirty (30) calendar days following receipt of written
notice of such default from District. However, if the nature of such default is
such that it cannot reasonably be cured within such period, Lessee shall be
deemed to have cured such default if within such period Lessee commences
performance thereof and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion.

Early termination by District pursuant to this Section 3.13 shall be upon not less than
thirty (30) days advance written notice to Lessee, which notice shall state the basis of such
termination and the effective date thereof. Upon the effective date of such term ination, District
may take possession of the Leased Premises, without further notice or demand to Lessee.
Failure to serve notice of termination upon the happening of any of the events described in this
Section shall not operate to bar or destroy District's right to thereafter declare such termination
upon the subsequent happening of any such event.

3.14 Early Termination by Lessee

If Lessee is legally compliant, and not in default of its payments or any other obligations
under the Agreement to the District herein, Lessee may terminate this Agreement prior to
expiration of the Term under the following terms and conditions:

a) If the District defaults in the performance of any promise, term, condition or
covenant required of it to be performed herein, provided District fails to cure such
default within sixty (60) calendar days following receipt of written notice of such
default from Lessee, Lessee may terminate its Agreement with thirty (30) days
written notice to the Chief. However, if the nature of such default is such that it
cannot reasonably be cured within such period, District shall be deemed to have
cured such default if within such period District commences performance thereof
and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion.

In the event of early termination by Lessee pursuant to this Section, Lessee shall pay
Rent to District, up to and including the date of such termination.

3.15 Entire Agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and all
other representations or statements heretofore made, verbal or written, are merged herein.

3.16  Execution and Approval of Agreement

Submission of this document by District for review, examination or execution by Lessee
does not constitute a reservation of an option to lease space, and this document shall not be

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 16 of 22

P30



effective as a lease agreement, or otherwise, unless and until approved by the Board of
Directors of the District and/or executed by the officer authorized by said Board.

3.17 Force Majeure

Neither District nor Lessee shall be deemed to be in breach of this Agreement if either is
prevented from performing any of its obligations herein by reason of strike, boycott, labor
dispute, embargo, shortage of energy or materials, act of God, act of a public enemy,
pandemic, act of a superior governmental authority, weather conditions, rebellion, riot,
sabotage, or any other circumstance for which it is not responsible, which is not within its
control and which cannot be modified or overcome by reasonable efforts of the prevented party.

3.18 Headings

The headings of the articles and sections of this Agreement are inserted only as a
matter of convenience and for reference, and do not define or limit the scope or intent of any

provisions of this Agreement, and shall not be construed to affect in any manner the terms and

provisions hereof or the interpretation or construction thereof.
3.19 Hold Over

If Lessee remains in possession of the Leased Premises following the expiration or
sooner termination of this Agreement, such hold over shall not be deemed to constitute an
extension or renewal of this Agreement, but shall merely create a tenancy from month-to-month
which either party hereto may terminate upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the
other. In the event of such hold over, Lessee shall perform all terms, promises, conditions and
covenants required of it hereunder, but shall pay Rent to District in such amounts as may be
designated by the Chief, which in no case shall be less than that in effect immediately prior to
such expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement.

3.20 Indemnification of District

Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless District, its Board of Directors,
officers, chiefs, agents, employees and volunteers (“Indemnified Parties”) from and against any
and all claims, demands, actions, losses, liabilities, damages, and costs, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, (collectively, “Claims”) arising out of or resulting from the performance of this
Agreement, regardless of whether caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder, except that
Claims do not include those arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to the active negligence,
sole negligence, or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties.

3.21 Independent Contractor

Lessee is not an employee or agent of District by reason of this Agreement, or
otherwise. Lessee is an independent contractor, and as between District and Lessee, Lessee
shall be solely responsible for its acts and omissions arising from or relating to its operations or
activities at Leased Premises.

3.22 Interpretation of Agreement

Nothing herein contained shall be construed or interpreted, in any manner whatsoever,
as limiting, relinquishing or waiving any of the rights of ownership enjoyed by District.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 17 of 22

P31



3.23 Invalid Provisions

In the event of any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof to any person, entity, or circumstances, shall to any extent be held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the terms,
covenants, conditions or provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person,
entity, or circumstance, shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected,
impaired or invalidated, provided that such invalidity, voiding or unenforceability of such
covenant, condition or provision does not materially prejudice either party in its respective rights
and obligations contained in the then remaining valid covenants, conditions or provisions of this
Agreement.

3.24 Licenses and Permits

Lessee shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, all necessary licenses and permits
required for construction of improvements or installation of equipment on the Leased Premises,
and any other licenses or permits necessary for the conduct of Lessee's operations.

3.25 Nonwaiver of Rights

No waiver of default by either party hereto of any of the terms, promises, covenants, or
conditions hereof to be performed, kept, and observed by the other party shall be construed as,
or shall operate as, a waiver of any subsequent default of any of the terms, promises,
covenants, or conditions herein contained, to be performed, kept, and observed by such other
party.

3.26 Notice of Claims and Suit

Lessee shall give District prompt and timely written notice of any personal injury or other
accident claims, and of any lawsuit coming to its knowledge when either such claim or lawsuit
arises out of or is in any way connected with the Leased Premises, the operations of Lessee
hereunder, which in any way, directly, indirectly, contingently or otherwise, might reasonably
affect the parties' relationship under this Agreement.

Such notice shall be deemed prompt and timely if given within thirty (30) calendar days
following the date of receipt of such claim by an officer, agent, or employee of either party, and
if given within ten (10) calendar days following the date of service of process upon either party
with respect to any such lawsuit.

3.27 Nuisance and Waste

Lessee shall not erect, nor permit to be erected, any nuisance on the Leased Premises,
or permit any waste thereof. Lessee shall not permit any trash or garbage to accumulate on or
about the Leased Premises.

3.28 Prohibition of Liens

Lessee shall pay promptly, as due, all persons supplying labor and materials for any
alteration of, or improvement to, the Leased Premises, and shall permit no lien or claim to be
filed or prosecuted against District on account of such labor and materials furnished.

3.29 Peaceable Use and Enjoyment

Lessee shall, upon payment of the fees and charges as herein required, and subject to
performance and compliance by Lessee of the covenants, conditions and agreements on the

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 18 of 22

P32



part of Lessee to be performed and complied with herein, peaceably have and enjoy the rights,
uses and privileges of the Leased Premises.

3.30 Release of Liability

District shall not be liable for, and is hereby released from any and all liability to Lessee,
to Lessee's insurance carrier or to anyone claiming under or through Lessee, for any loss or
damage whatsoever to the property or effects of Lessee resulting from the discharge of water
or other substance from pipes, sprinklers, conduits, containers, appurtenances thereof, or
fixtures thereto; or from any damage resulting from the discharge or failure of electric current,
regardless of cause or origin, except the active negligence, sole negligence, or willful
misconduct of District, its employees or agents.

3.31 Removal of Lessee's Property

If Lessee is not in default as to the payment of any rent, fee, or other charge payable to
District herein, Lessee may remove its inventory, Trade Fixtures and furnishings from the
Leased Premises upon expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement. If Lessee does not
elect, or otherwise fails to remove the same, or any part thereof, within thirty (30) days following
District's regaining possession of the Leased Premises, District may, at its option, either require
such removal at Lessee's sole cost and expense, or keep such property, in which latter event,
title to the same shall vest in District without any obligation to pay Lessee with respect thereto.

3.32 Retention of Records

Lessee shall retain all its books, records of account, and supporting documents
pertaining to the uses permitted under this Agreement for not less than four (4) calendar years
following expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement. Lessee shall retain all such
books, records of account, and supporting documents at a location within the County of
Sacramento, and shall keep and maintain the same in accordance with accepted professional
accounting principles.

3.33 Right of Entry

The Chief shall have the right, throughout the Term of this Agreement, to enter the
Leased Premises for any lawful purpose, including the purpose of determining whether Lessee
is complying with its obligations herein. Lessee shall normally be given twenty-four (24) hours'’
notice prior to exercise of such right, except in the event entry is necessary for safety or
environmental purposes. Such entry by District shall not be deemed to excuse Lessee’s
performance of any promise, term, condition, or covenant required of it by this Agreement, and
shall not be deemed to constitute waiver thereof by District.

3.34 Risk Reduction

Lessee shall neither use nor permit the use of the Leased Premises in such a manner
as to increase the risk which would affect the rate of insurance thereon in excess of that in
existence at the commencement of the Term hereof.

3.35 Successors and Assigns

The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
respective successors, assigns, heirs, and personal representatives of the parties hereto.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 19 of 22

P33



3.36 Surrender of Leased Premises

District is not required to give Lessee any notice to quit possession of the Leased
Premises upon expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement. Lessee shall peaceably
surrender possession of the Leased Premises upon expiration or sooner termination of this
Agreement in as good order and condition as when received, excepting reasonable wear,
destruction by lightning or other natural causes, or fire not caused by the acts or omissions of
Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, subcontractors, customers, invitees, or other persons
doing business with Lessee or on the Leased Premises with the consent of Lessee.

3.37 Taxes

Lessee shall, at its sole cost and expense, pay any and all taxes for which it is
responsible, or which may be assessed against it.

A. Possessory Interest and Property Taxation

Under this Agreement a possessory interest subject to property taxation may be
created. Pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 107.6 and
Government Code Section 53340.1, notice is hereby given that such possessory interest
may be subject to property taxation and special taxation pursuant to Chapter 25,
Division 2 of the Government Code (Mello Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982), and
that the party in whom the possessory interest is vested may be subject to the payment
of property taxes and special taxes levied on such interest.

Lessee shall pay any and all taxes, assessments, and other charges of
whatsoever character that may be levied or charged upon Lessee's interest as herein
may be created, improvements, operations, or right to use the Leased Premises.

B. Right to Contest Taxes

Nothing within this Section 3.38 shall be deemed to limit any of Lessee’s rights to
appeal the amount, applicability or validity of any such taxes, assessment, or charges in
accordance with the rules, regulations, statutes or ordinances governing the appeal
process of the authorities making such levies or assessments; and provided, further,
that if Lessee contests any assessment made by the Assessor of the County, such
contest shall not be initiated in the name of the District, and District shall not be
obligated to cooperate therewith.

If at any time payment of any tax or assessment becomes necessary to prevent
any forfeiture or loss, Lessee shall pay such tax or assessment to prevent such
forfeiture or loss.

3.38 Time is of the Essence

Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
3.39 Title to the Leased Premises

Title to the Leased Premises is and shall remain vested in the District.
3.40 Title to Leasehold Improvements

Title to all Leasehold Improvements made by Lessee shall at all times during the Term
remain in Lessee. Upon expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, title to all such
Leasehold Improvements shall, at the written election of the Chief, vest in the District without

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property Page 20 of 22

P34



payment of any further consideration to Lessee; except that in lieu of taking title to such
Leasehold Improvements, the Chief shall have the option to require Lessee to remove any or all
of such Leasehold Improvements, at Lessee's sole cost, within sixty (60) days after such
expiration or termination. Chief shall exercise the District's option to require Lessee to remove
any or all of such Leasehold Improvements, at Lessee's sole cost, by providing notice to
Lessee within sixty (60) days of expiration of this Lease. In the event of sooner termination
pursuant to this Lease, said exercise of such option shall not be required and Chief may
designate the disposition of the Leasehold improvements.

3.41 Trash and Garbage

Lessee shall be responsible for the proper collection, transportation and placement of
garbage, trash, and refuse associated with their operation in receptacle(s).

At the sole discretion of the Chief, Lessee may be required, at its sole cost and
expense, to provide a complete and proper arrangement for the adequate sanitary handling and
disposal away from the Leased Premises of all trash, garbage, and other refuse resulting from,
or in any way associated with, Lessee’s operations herein. Such arrangements shall include,
but not be limited to, the use of suitable covered metal receptacles at the Leased Premises for
such garbage, trash and other refuse. Lessee shall be given thirty (30) days written notice of
such requirement.

3.42 Vehicular and Equipment Parking

Vehicular and equipment parking by Lessee, its employees, agents, licenses, suppliers,
subcontractors, customers, guests or invitees shall be restricted to the parking lot on the
Leased Premises.

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property : Page 21 of 22

P35



3.43 Execution of Agreement

'IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the day and year fully executed by all parties, but effective as of the date set forth in
Article 2.01.

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date;

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Date:

California Fire & Rescue Training Authority 3121 Gold Canal Drive
Agreement for Lease of Real Property _ Page 22 of 22

P36



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Avenue « Mather, California 95655 « Phone (916) 859-4300 o Fax (916)859-3720

TODD HARMS
Fire Chief
DATE: June 25, 2020
TO: Board of Directors

SUBJECT: Disclosure of material expenditure — Aviation Liability Insurance — Ace
Westchester Fire Insurance Company $105,168.00

TOPIC

Disclosure of material expenditure to purchase aviation liability insurance for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2021.

SUMMARY

Staff will be expending funds to purchase aviation liability insurance. The expenditure
will be payable to ACE Westchester Fire Insurance Company in the amount of
~ $105,168.00 for the aviation policy.

DISCUSSION

USI Insurance Services provided the District's insurance brokerage services this year
and managed the marketing of the District’s aviation liability insurance. The aviation
liability insurance package for the upcoming fiscal year includes coverage for two flying
helicopters and two grounded helicopters.

The aviation policy premium has decreased from FY 19/20, as the values of the three
grounded helicopters have each been lowered to $350,000. The two flying helicopters
are each valued at $1,500,000. The flying helicopters carry $10,000,000 of liability, and
the grounded helicopters carry $1,000,000 of liability.

The insurance requested includes any pilot approved by Metro Fire’s Chief Pilot or
designee and covers all uses in connection with the operations of Metro Fire including
mutual aid agreements. ACE Westchester Fire Insurance Company is the carrier
recommended by US| to carry the District’s aviation liability insurance needs.

FISCAL IMPACT

The fiscal impact is $105,168.00. Funds sufficient to meet this obligation are budgeted
in the Preliminary Budget for FY 2019/2020.

P37



RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the payment of $105,168.00 to
ACE Westchester Fire Insurance Company for the purchase of Aviation Liability
Insurance.

Submitted by: Approved by:

) —

"Gregory as Todd Harms
Deputy Chief, Administration Fire Chief

P38



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 * Mather, CA 95655 * Phone (916) 859-4300 « Fax (916) 859-3702

TODD HARMS

Fire Chief
DATE: June 25, 2020
TO: Board of Directors

SUBJECT: Election of Representative to the California Special District Association (CSDA)
Board of Directors '

TOPIC

Cast ballot to elect a candidate to serve as a representative for California Special District
Association (CSDA) Board of Directors Sierra Network, Seat C.

DISCUSSION

Each of CSDA’s six geographical networks has three seats on the Board. Each candidate is
either a board member or management-level employee of a member district located in the
network they seek to represent. Each District in good standing shall be entitled to vote for one
(1) candidate to represent its network.

This year, CSDA has opted for electronic voting. The electronic ballot has been emailed to Chief
Harms, with all votes due no later than 5:00pm on July 10, 2020. The governing Board of Metro
Fire may cast their ballot for one candidate by voting at an official public meeting. The selection
of the candidate must be by a majority vote of the Board. Choose one of the following
candidates: '

Peter J. Kampa — Groveland Community Services District
Scott Holbrook — Auburn Area Recreation Park District
Patrick Larkin — Cordova Recreation and Park District

The candidate who receives the most votes will be elected with terms of office commencing in
2021 and expiring in 2023.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board select one candidate to be voted for as the representative for the
California Special District Association (CSDA) Board of Directors Sierra Network, Seat C.

Su mipd By: -
A @ *!és(‘i/ Ay ‘ ‘Q

Melissa Penilla '
Clerk of the Board

Attachments: CSDA Candidate Information

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties

P39



California Special
Districts Association

BB  Districts Stronger Together

2021-2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET

The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order:

Name: Peter]. Kampa

District/Company: Groveland Community Services District

Title: General Manager

Elected/Appointed/Staff: _Appointed/Staff General Manager

Length of Service with District: 2 years

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

a is an SDA, and attends annual conference Leadership Academy, Legislative
Action Days, and as many CSDA training events as possible. Mr. Kampa has served on the
CSDA Board of Directors since 1998, with only a two vear lapse

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations (CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

a served on the California Rural Water Assn Boggi ;rom 1995-1998. and on
B - i

r. Kan
various ACWA committees and Task Forces from 200

3. Listlocal government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
etc.):

Mr. Kampa led the effort to secure special district re resentation on the Tuolumne

County LA In 2019. He coilaborates on many projects and inffiatives in cooperation
with the County of Tuolumne and the Countz Fire Chiefs Association, including fire and
emergency preparedness planning

4. List civic organization involvement:
Leadership Tuolumne County, Tuolumne County Chamber of Commerce

“*Candidate Statement — Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length. Any statements received in the
CSDA office after March 26, 2020 will not be included with the ballot.

P40



Candidate’s Statement
CSDA Board of Directors

['have proudly served on the Board of Directors for the California Special Districts
Association (CSDA) since 1998, and I respectfully request your vote as I seek reelection
for Region 2, Seat C this year. Since 1994 and while serving on the CSDA Board of
Directors, I have also served as General Manager for special districts throughout
California providing diverse services including water, wastewater, mosquito control, park
and recreation, fire protection, road maintenance, solid waste, ambulance, library, street
lighting and snow removal. I currently serve as General Manager of the Groveland and
Copper Valley (previously Saddle Creek) Community Services Districts, both located in
Region 2,

I am passionate about the value and competence of special districts as local service
providers in rural areas. I believe that strong, engaged CSDA chapters and district
participation on LAFCO are critical to advancing the mission and influence of CSDA.

As a Board member, [ will continue support for innovative and relevant member services,
a diverse offering of educational opportunities and powerful legislative presence.

The value and influence of CSDA has grown exponentially in the last decade, much of
which can be attributed to the member input network, leadership and competency of
CSDA management and staff, supported by the solid governance dynamic of the current
CSDA Board. I seek your vote and input as we continue to increase the effectiveness of
CSDA in all we do.

I am running this term on behalf of the Groveland Community Services District Board of
Directors, who unanimously supports and directs my active involvement in CSDA.

P41



SEECITi
14 W)
al

Californis Special
Districts Assoeiation
EBEBEBE  Disyics Stranger Together

2021-2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET

The following information MUST fecompany your nomination form and Resolutlon/minute order:

Name: c’_ié? 74[ /4‘5392/:

“ 3
District/Company: éuéueru X2 EMA géc‘i@E«f—ﬁo«u‘ 212/( :Dﬂ‘ﬁ:d'@@
Title: _Dedws 8 % “Braco foad mﬂscram -

AppointediStaﬁ: ELE&T =1 ®) :
Length of Service with District: 3&&) <o Lﬂ“‘-ﬁ—- s iy g;%efl = c;lof

1. Do you have cutrent involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, efe.):

ld‘) OFFICAL. 10/t vemtEST ~ 7 Efg4eocaely Aﬁéao
'75«4'«4-5,— /é'agfggfdafs ! LoBBGinb

2. Have you ever been associated with any other state-wide associations {CSAC, ACWA,
League, etc.):

1Jo

3. List local government involvement {such as LAFCo, Association of Governments,
ete.):

’ : .’ M’
Z

thered Z Peclotont; M&Zg%gf
“Biitileos il " e 2 ndiie Q%MQMM@S

4. List civic organization involvement:

@Sf MJ’M%& ﬂaﬁﬂu f.{k‘c[?€ /&8/ K:NA—MS; él@
j;m_uz ya 7,:1‘1 egee ox T’é_dﬁfl Qe

**Candidate Statement — Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit 2
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length. Any statements received in the
CSDA office after March 26, 2020 wiil not be included with the baliot.

P42



| just wanted to reach out to my fellow members of the Sierra Network to ask for your vote to include
me on the CSDA Board. | have over 20 years experience with the Auburn Rec. District, and have been
very involved with CSDA training & lobbying. | am here to represent the members, | promlse to be
readily available and responsive to any requests, questions or otherwise. | strongly feel we can work
together to maximize the CSDA resources, to relieve individual districts of time and financial resources
to allow us to focus on our primary mission to serve our communities. | further feel we need to increase
our voice and lobbying efforts to help reduce expensive mandates, that just do not make sense &
further to protect the independence and fiscal viability of Special Districts. If you have any questions,
feel free to reach out by phone or email. Ithank you in advance for your vote and support, as always....
Keep Smilin’ — Scott.

P43



California Special
Districts Association

EBEE Districts Stronger Together

2021-2023 CSDA BOARD CANDIDATE INFORMATION SHEET

The following information MUST accompany your nomination form and Resolution/minute order:

Name: /E:x-\(v;(,\c LQF‘L\\"\
District/Company: ( MQQ oJa Sg ec Y@ Qizm .,Q,nc\ ,Par‘(- B]S‘\»’fd\'

Title: ) €A CJKL MO\A’\,C\ o AN
Elected/Appointed/Staff: S CC
Length of Service with District: < :‘ 20.ALS j}: 2 wenth <

1. Do you have current involvement with CSDA (such as committees, events,
workshops, conferences, Governance Academy, etc.):

\-{QS Ogufeﬂ(‘ﬂ Gevu?,w’z&)Q WMEEM'_\‘. w

() Qe <y O LAASTIYYNCAS

NNVAAL
2. Haveyou t\;\}er been associated
League, etc.):

Mﬂ, < 4 Cocne i Soarets. Diclered 2
'/?Mokomj amdl wWtnbapy tor ZL;A(: -

3. List local government involvement (such as LAFCo, Association o¥Governments,
etc.):

T

4. List civic organization involvement:

WQ lha ml/zrzn/ ot Crarmvrnaacs (_QQDLOA/S-D";:%’ P(B‘cgzvm E’YKM

**Candidate Statement — Although it is not required, each candidate is requested to submit a
candidate statement of no more than 300 words in length. Any statements received in the
CSDA office after March 26, 2020 will not be included with the ballot.

P44



Recreation & Park District

Patrick Larkin

General Manager

Cordova Recreation and Park District
Candidate Statement

The assets I would bring to the CSDA Board of Directors if elected, include having strong
interpersonal communication and relationship building skills. I will work well with other
Board members to setand achieve realistic goals that benefit the CSDA membership. [ am an
active listener, in that, | believe you can learn a lot more by listening than by speaking. [ have
a good sense of humor and enjoy working with high functioning teams. I am also a maximizer.
I'use this strength to take something good to something superb. I want to hear what the CSDA
members want and need and plan to address those wants and needs to best serve as a Board
Member representing the Sierra Network.

I enjoy and excel at building relationships with others which is the foundation of any
successful organization. | am a good coach and mentor and enjoy developing people. I will
use my leadership strengths to address any issues of concern to make the CSDA organization
and membership stronger.

Thank you for your consideration

2728 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 230
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670
(916) 842-3300

P45



